SENATE FI NANCE COWM TTEE
April 3, 2015
9:35 a.m

9:35:20 AM

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair MacKinnon called the Senate Finance Committee
nmeeting to order at 9:35 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Co- Chair
Senat or Pete Kelly, Co-Chair
Senator Peter M cciche, Vice-Chair
Senator dick Bishop

Senat or M ke Dunl eavy

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

VEMBERS ABSENT

None

ALSO PRESENT

Erin Shine, Staff, Senator Anna McKi nnon; Larry Semmens,
Staff, Senator Peter M cciche; Dougl as Mert z, Prince

WIlliam Sound Regional GCitizens Advisory Council; Vince
O Shea, Pacific Seafood Processors Association, Juneau;
Kristin Ryan, Director, Dyvision of Spill Prevention and

Response, Departnment of Environnental Conservation.

PRESENT VI A TELECONFERENCE

Kara Moriarty, President and Chief Executive Oficer,
Alaska G| and Gas Association; Ken Alper, Drector, Tax
Di vi si on, Departnment of Revenue.

SUMVARY

SB 86 REFI NED FUEL SURCHARGE; MOTOR FUEL TAX

SB 86 was HEARD and HELD in commttee for further
consi derati on.



#sb86
SENATE BI LL NO. 86

"An Act relating to a refined fuel surcharge; relating
to the notor fuel tax; relating to a qualified dealer
Iicense; and providing for an effective date."

9:36:10 AM

Vice-Chair Mcciche MOVED to ADOPT the committee substitute
for SB 86, Wrk Draft 29-LS0675\F (Nauman, 4/1/15).

Co- Chair MacKi nnon OBJECTED for di scussi on.

ERIN SHI NE, STAFF, SENATOR ANNA MACKI NNON, explained the
three changes in the commttee substitute. She |ooked at

page 2, line 11, which renoved 0.008 and was replaced with
0.0095. She looked at page 2, line 4, which had a new
nunber 4 and read, "aviation fuel." She pointed to page 5,

line 7, which renoved "aviation facilities" and replaced
with "capital or operating cost of airports.”

Senat or O son asked for a restatenent of the second change.
Ms. Shine replied that page 2, line 4 had a new nunber 4
and read, "aviation fuel." The Iline previously stated,
"fuel sold for use in jet propulsion aircraft operating in
flights to a foreign country, or that continue from foreign
countries."

Senator O son addressed page 2, line 15, and wondered what
affect that would have on the aviation community. M. Shine
deferred to Vice-Chair M cciche.

Vice-Chair Mcciche explained that it restated the existing
tax, so the surcharge exenpted aviation fuels, but limted
t he existing taxes.

Senator O son wondered if anyone had spoken against the
commttee substitute. Vice-Chair Mcciche replied that
there was sone difficulty wth the Federal Aviation
Adm nistration (FAA) regulations, because all surcharges
must return to the airport. He felt that there was adequate
funding for aviation fuel related spills, so it was decided
to not collect fromthe segnment of refined fuels.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 2 04/03/15 9:35 A M



Senator O son queried if there was anyone, outside of
avi ation, who had spoken in favor or against the proposed
the commttee substitute changes. Vice-Chair M cciche
replied that the departnent had voiced coments. The
departnment was concerned how to manage the funds with the
inclusion of aviation fuels. He stated that the departnent
was in favor of the changes in the conmttee substitute.

Senator Dunl eavy wondered if there was a difference between

"aviation fuel” and "aviation gasoline." Vi ce-Chair
M cciche did not know the answer. He deferred to the
Depart ment of Envi r onnment al Conservati on ( DEC) and

Depart ment of Revenue (DOR).

Senator O son explained that aviation fuel would include
avi ati on gasol i ne.

Senat or Dunleavy renarked that there may be two separate
itens: gasoline and fuel.

9:41: 08 AM

Senat or Hoffrman |ooked at page 1, line 11, and wondered
what was anticipated with the 0.008 scenario, and whether
it was the $7.5 mllion. He further queried what was
anticipated under the new nunber of 0.0095. Vice-Chair
M cciche stated that the anbunt was essentially the sane.
He explained that the increase was due to the aviation
exenpti on.

Ms. Shine furthered that there were forthcomng fiscal
notes that would update the nunbers to reflect the 0.0095.
She stated that there would be a slight adjustnment, because
of the aviation fuel exenption and increase in percentage.

Co-Chair MacKi nnon REMOVED her OBJECTION. There being NO
further OBJECTIQN, the proposed committee substitute was
adopt ed.

9:42: 34 AM
AT EASE

9:43: 20 AM
RECONVENED

9:43: 30 AM

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 3 04/03/15 9:35 A M



Vice-Chair Mcciche explained the legislation. The Ol and
Hazar dous Substance Release Prevention and Response Fund
(Response Fund) was created to provide a reliable source of
funding for the Departnent of Environmental Conservation’s
(DEC) activities related to oil spi || response and
prevention. The Response Fund has been financed wth a five
cent per-barrel surcharge on oil produced. Decreasing oil
production has resulted in a decline of revenue available
to pay for spill prevention and cleanup work. The
prevention account which receives $.04 cents per barrel, no
| onger has enough revenue to cover essential activities
resulting in the need for an imediate solution that fixes

the problem for future years as well. A variety of
industries and individuals spill oi | and hazardous
subst ances, including private homeowners, m nes, fue

shi ppers, boat owners, village tank farns and the aviation
industry to nane a few. The nmgjority of spills the State
responds to are refined fuels. For exanple, in fiscal year
2014, of the 2,028 spills reported, 1,525 were refined fuel
spills. According to Kristin Ryan, the Director for the

Division of Spill Prevention and Response, 75-80 percent of
active contam nated sites in Alaska are also the result of
refined fuel spills. This bill distributes prevention and

response costs across all users of refined fuel that are
causing these response and cleanup efforts. This bil
proposes a surcharge of .8 cent per gallon on refined fuels
distributed in the state. Fuel distributors already file
and pay taxes on notor fuels each nonth. This bill
anticipates that the surcharge will be collected from the
same distributors and reported on the same fornms, reducing
i npl enmentation costs and maxi m zing efficiency for both the
payers and the State. Al funds collected will be deposited
in the Response Fund' s Prevention Account.

9:51:45 AM

LARRY SEMVENS, STAFF, SENATOR PETER M CClI CHE, i ntroduced
hi msel f.

Senator Hoffrman noted that there were currently separate
tax rates for different products. He recalled that there
were reasons for the different levels of taxation. He
wondered if the bill included heating fuel, and asked why
there was a flat tax rather than a graduated tax structure.
Vice-Chair Mcciche replied that the intention was to
sinplify the system He stated that the tax was essentially
a user fee. The bill was intended to place the costs where

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 4 04/03/15 9:35 A M



the spills occur. He furthered that DOR nmay be able to
answer nore detailed questions regarding aviation fuel. He
stressed that there was an attenpt to apply the surcharge
to the individuals who were causing the spills.

Senator Hoffman queried equity in the new tax structure.
Vice-Chair Mcciche replied that there was a hope that the
cost did not trickle down to the consuner. He stated that
the average famly would see an additional $4 or $5 per
year in total. He felt that the state should not be
required to cover the cost of the fuel spills in the
current economc climate.

Senator Hoffman felt that charging the tax on a per gallon
basi s made nore sense than a percentage of price basis.

Senator Bishop wondered if there were discussions wth
common carriers about increasing insurance premuns for
tankers. Vice-Chair Mcciche replied in the affirmative.

Senator Dunleavy asked if there would be a review of the
fiscal note. Vice-Chair Mcciche responded that the fisca
note discussion would occur when the bill noved from
comittee.

Senat or Dunl eavy wondered if he could ask a question about
this fiscal note. Co-Chair MacKinnon replied in the
negati ve.

Senator O son commented that there seened to be a push to
nove to natural gas rather than heating fuel

9:56: 21 AM
AT EASE

9:57:13 AM
RECONVENED

9: 58: 03 AM

KARA MORI ARTY, PRESIDENT AND CH EF EXECUTIVE OFFI CER
ALASKA O L AND GAS ASSCCI ATION (via tel econference), (AOCGA)
stated that AOGA represented the nmjority of oil and gas
producers, expl orers, refiners, transporters, and
mar keters. She stated that her testinony had the unani nous
consent from all of the AOGA nenber conpanies. She shared
that, in addition to the mllions of dollars invested each

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 5 04/03/15 9:35 A M



year by the industry in Alaska to prevent, prepare, and
respond to the release of hazardous substances, AOGA had
| ong supported a fair and equitable effort to ensure that

Al aska was financial prepared to respond to a spill. She
shared that the state had only collected a surcharge on the
oil and gas industry to pay for the spill response fund

since 1989. She stressed that the industry had contributed
nore than $350 million through the surcharge for the fund.

Vi ce- Chai r M cci che announced t hat he  worked for
ConocoPhilips. He clarified that the bill was not related
ConocoPhi | i ps, and explained that ConocoPhilips was not a
menber of AOCGA.

10: 02: 29 AM

DOUGLAS MERTZ, PRINCE WLLIAM SOUND REGQ ONAL CITIZENS
ADVI SORY COUNCI L, testified in support of the |egislation
He shared that there was a history of his council working

to structure an oil spill prevention and response capacity.
He shared that there was an acknow edgenent that prevention
was the nost inportant factor in spill response. He

stressed that only approxinmately 10 percent of the spills
were cleaned, so there were ongoing costs for many people.

He remarked that the response costs for a mgjor spill was
enornmous. He stated that ExxonMbil spent over $2.5 billion
on the Exxon Valdez oil spill. He remarked that the state
potentially faced enornous costs for each major spills, as
well as the ongoing costs for dealing with the snaller
spills.

10: 06: 41 AM

VI NCE O SHEA, PACI FIC SEAFOOD PROCESSORS ASSOCI ATI ON
JUNEAU, remarked that he was in support of the |egislation.
He agreed with the wvalue of prevention. He expressed
concern wth the 30 percent collection rate under
Department of Environnmental Conservation (DEC). He wurged
the commttee to examne the transparency of DEC, and
whet her fund repaynment was necessary.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon CLOSDED public testinony.
Co- Chai r MacKi nnon wondered if there was lack in
transparency is collections accounting. She also queried

the 30 percent collection rate reference that M. O Shea
referred.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 6 04/03/15 9:35 A M



10:11: 01 AM

KRI STIN RYAN, DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF SPILL PREVENTION AND
RESPONSE, DEPARTMENT OF ENVI RONMENTAL CONSERVATI ON, stated
t hat \V/ g O Shea was referring to a cost recovery
percentage. In FY 14, the recovery rate was 30 percent of
what was billed. She explained that many of the cost
recovery efforts spanned nany years. She stated that |arge
contamnated sites had billed the Koch Industries $4
mllion to recover sone state costs associated with the
cleanup of Flint Hlls. She stressed that the issue was
currently in court to attenpt to reinburse sone of those
costs. She remarked that it was difficult, on an annual
basis, to show an i medi ate recovery of costs.

Co- Chai r MacKi nnon wondered if the billing occurred
annually. She queried the availability of the history of
acting on behalf of the people of Alaska to recover the
costs from the federal governnent and private conpanies.
Ms. Ryan responded that there was work to inprove the day
to day cost recovery. She shared that there was a recent

i npl enentation of autonmated billing. She shared that there
was a tine tracking system in order to determne the
tinmeliness of the billing of services.

Co-Chair  MacKinnon announced that she wants further
docunentation of those efforts. She queried the checks and
bal ances for the general public to have confidence that the
departnent was managi ng outstandi ng debt appropriately. M.
Ryan replied that the new tinme tracking system woul d ensure
that there was a better sense of how individuals were
tracking tine. The tinme was charged to a specific code, so
t he managenent could see the occurrence of cost recovery.
She remarked that approximately 30 to 40 percent of the
work was prevention oriented, so those costs were
unr ecover abl e.

10: 16: 28 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon queried the date of the finalization of
the cost recovery regulations for the public. M. Ryan
replied that it was in draft form so she could not
guarantee a date. She hoped that it would be available in
one year fromthe current date.

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 7 04/03/15 9:35 A M



Co- Chair MacKi nnon encouraged a conversation wth the
commi ssioner, and remarked that she would follow up via
emai | .

Senator Hoffman | ooked at the effective date of July 1, and
wondered if there would be adequate tinme to inplenent the
tax. Ms. Ryan replied that the goal was to generate revenue
for 2016.

Senator Hoffrman wondered if it was nore reasonable to have
a January 1 effective date for inplenentation of the tax.
Ms. Ryan deferred to DOR

Senat or Hof fman wondered how other states would be pay for
this type of problem M. Ryan replied that the other
states used a variety of tactics. She hoped that there
would be future legislation that may charge a fee for
| eaving contam nation in the ground. She asserted that it
depended on the type of industry in those states, and the
types of occurring spills. She stressed that Al aska had a
| arge oil industry.

Senat or Hof fman wondered how Texas paid for their spill
prevention and response. M. Ryan agreed to provide that
i nformation.

10:19: 57 AM

KEN ALPER, DIRECTOR, TAX DIVISION, DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE
(via teleconference), (DOR) introduced hinself. In response
to a question from Senator Hoffrman, he stated that the bill
was attached to the existing notor fuel tax form

Senator Bi shop commented that diesel fuel was 60 percent of
the issue, and would |ike to make the intent zero percent.

Senat or Dunleavy wondered if the SPAR fund was used to
clean up spills like batteries in a parking lot or septic
system spills. M. Ryan replied that the fund restricted

the use for cleanup of oil or hazardous substances. She
furthered that batteries may fall into that category, but
sewage did not fall into that category.

Co- Chair MacKinnon recalled that there was a question about
gasoline, and Senator O son was discussing the difference
between that and aviation fuel. She wondered if there

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 8 04/03/15 9:35 A M



should be a conversation about that differentiation, and
how it affected the bill.

Senator Dunleavy explained that he was curious as to
whet her the bill sponsor saw any differentiation between
gasol ine and avi ati on fuel.

Senator O son wanted the departnent to conmment on the
difference between aviation fuel and gasoline. M. Ryan
deferred to M. Alper. She stated that aviation fue
included all fuel used at airports, but DOR would be able
to speak to the notor fuels tax.

Co- Chair MacKi nnon noted that the commttee substitute had
| anguage which separated notor fuel and refined fuel in
order to create clarity when collecting tax. She queried
the difference between aviation fuel and gasoline. M.
Alper replied that DOR was currently collecting tax on
aviation fuel and jet fuel, and they were considered
separate categories of taxable fuel wthin the existing
notor fuel tax. The general aviation fuel was taxed at 4.7
cents per gallon, and the jet fuel was taxed at 3.2 cents
per gallon. The exclusion that was added in the conmttee
substitute would remove that set of fuel, which had a sum
total of 150 mllion gallons of fuel per year. He stated
that Section 5 anended existing |anguage that related to
how the state used the existing notor fuel tax for
aviation, and the change was nmade to conform nore closely
to some FAA federal guidelines.

10: 26: 23 AM

Senator A son surmsed that jet fuel and aviation gasoline
were exenpted from the bill. M. Aper replied that the
term "aviation fuel" wmy not be precisely defined in
statute.

Vice-Chair M cciche di scussed the fiscal notes.

Senator Hoffman recalled that there would be a new fisca
note to reflect the changes in the commttee substitute.
Co-Chair MacKi nnon agreed, and stated that there was a
pendi ng fiscal note.

Senator Hoffrman wondered if the revised fiscal note would
have any <changes from the current version. Co-Chair

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 9 04/03/15 9:35 A M



MacKi nnon replied that there would be changes, but the
change was subject to change.

10: 28: 56 AM
AT EASE

10: 29:16 AM
RECONVENED

10: 29: 25 AM

Co- Chair MacKi nnon asked for clarification of the fiscal
note. M. Alper explained that the pending fiscal note
woul d reflect two changes: 1) the reduction in the tax base
related to the restriction of aviation fuel; and 2) rate
increased from 0.008 to 0.0095. It was expected that those
two changes would bal ance each other out. He stated that
the draft fiscal note showed $7.6 mllion in the first
year, which was a $100,000 difference. He remarked that it
was an estimate, because it was unknown how nuch fuel would
arrive under the surcharge in the follow ng year.

Senat or Hoffrman wanted to see the calculations by product.
M. Al per replied that Section 3 was conform ng |anguage
that described the existing notor fuel tax on various types
of fuel, and which aviation and jet fuel were captured. He
pointed to line 12, which added the surcharge.

Senat or Dunl eavy | ooked at a fiscal note that was prepared
on 4/2/15, so he wondered if that fiscal note would be
revised. Co-Chair MacKinnon indicated in the affirmative.

Senator Dunleavy wondered iif the analysis about the
arbitrary nunbers in the fiscal note would carry to the new
fiscal note. Co-Chair MacKinnon replied in the affirmative.

Senat or Hof f man commented that he supports the |egislation,
and stated that he would be willing to get the information.

SB 86 was HEARD and HELD in committee for further
consi derati on.

#
ADJ QURNVENT
10: 35: 21 AM

The neeting was adjourned at 10:35 a. m

Senat e Fi nance Comm ttee 10 04/03/15 9:35 A M



